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8. .Function or Use ‘I' ‘I'_

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Commercial/Specialty Store Commercial/Specialty Store
Commercial /Department Store Commercial/Department Store
Domestic/Single Dwelling Domestic/Single Dwelling
Religion/Church School Religion/Church School
Religion/Religious Structure Religion/Religious Structure

7. _Description

Architectural Classification Materials {enter categorigs from instructions)

{entar categories from instructions)

foundation Stone
Late Victorian/Italianate walls Brick

Late Victorian/Queen Anne Wood
Mid-19th Century/Greek Revival roof Asphalt, Slate

other

Describe present and historic physical appéarance.

The North East Historic District in Erie County is an area of mid-nineteenth to
early twentieth Century commercial, residential, religious and institutional
buildings. The buildings within the district are typically two or two-and-a-
half stories, are of brick or frame construction, are moderate in scale and detail,
and retain a high degree of integrity.

North-East. Bogxough is located approximately .fifteen L -
miles northeast of the City of trie‘%n northwestern Pennsylvania. The main nortn-
south road through town is Lake Street and the main east-west road through town
is Main Street. Generally, the district includes the commercial buildings on
Lake, Main, Gibson, Park and Division Streets. The district also includes the
churches along the above-mentioned streets and St. Mary's Seminary at Division
and North Lake Streets. There are 114 contributing buildings and 9 non-contributing
buildings within the district.

At the center of the district is a landscaped town square located between Lake,
Main, Gibson and Park Streets. The square is called "Gibson Park"” and has large
shade trees, walkways, benches and a war memorial. It 1s the centerpiece of North
East and 1is situated across Main Street from the concentration of commercial
buildings which constitute the central business district.

The central business district of North East is confined to those buildings
along the intersection of Lake and Main Streets. The only three story building in
the district is the brick commercial building at 2-8 East Main Street. It is
situated on a triangular lot at the northeast corner of Lake and Main Streets. It
is an Italianate Style building with storefronts at the first story, 1/1 sash
windows with decorative lintels at the second and third stories, and a large
ornamental cornice along the flat roof. The three buildings to the east have
experienced extensive and unsympathetic remodeling. Aluminum has been applied ton
the upper stories above the storefronts of these buildings obscuring any original
detail which may have survived., The other commercial building within this block is
to the north of 2-8 East Main Street at 1l4-16 North Lake Street. It is a six-bav
brick building which has perma-stone applied to the facade above the storefronts.

The remaining commercial buildings are two stories in height and are of brick

construction as regulated by an ordinance passed in 1884 following a fire which
destroyed two thirds of the town's commercial .buildings. The majority of the

(X] See continuation sheet
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commercial buildings were erected within years of the fire, such as those buildings
at 1-21 West Main Street. These buildings typify the commercial buildings found in
the district, Their style is predominately Italianate with first story storefronts,
1/1 sash windows with decorative window surrounds at the second story, and corbelled
brick and bracketed cornices which adoern the flat roof lines, The majority of the
commercial storefronts have been remodeled or replaced, but this detracts little
from the overall character of the buildings. It should be noted that 1 West Main
Street was built to accommodate a triangular shaped 1lot.

17-21 South Lake Street also occupies a triangular shaped lot and is located
south of 1 West Main Street, This is the only stone commercial building in the
district and it exemplifies the Neo-Classical Style. The commercial buildings to
the south of 17-21 South Lake Street include one nine-bay Italianate buillding with
segmentally arched windows at the second story; a Masonic Temple with a projecting
center bay with a large arched window opening and a pedimented parapet above; a one
story storefront at 31 South Main Street; and a series of modest Italianate
buildings between 33 and 41 South Lake Street.

The building at 9-13 East Main Street also occupies a triangular lot and wraps
the corner and extends nine additional bays south along South Lake Street. The
building is similar to those buildings along West Main Street described above.
There are three commercial buildings to the east of 9-13 East Main Street and they
include a three-bay Italianate building; a simple Victorian commercial building with
its gable end facing Main Street and set back five feet from the neighboring
buildings; and a nine-bay Italianate building with tall round arch windows at the
second story,

To the south of 9-13 East Main Street, on South Lake Street, are two four-bay
buildings and three additional buildings to the south and they include 14 Sguth Lake
Street, which is similar to the Masonic Temple across the street; 18-20 South Lake
Street, which has paired 1/1 sash at the second story and an elaborate parapet at
the roof; and 24 South Lake Street, which is a Queen Anne Style commercial building
with an ornamental cornice and a turret at its southern corner.

To the south of 24 Lake Street, across Mechanics Street, i1s an unassuming
building which has a rich history as the Concord Hotel. It is a two story,
five-bay, brick building with an elaborate porch, keystone style lintels and a
simple gable roof. The building has suffered several fires which have altered its
original appearance,

There is one additional commercial building at 15-21 Vine Street. It is modest

in detail, but is similar to the typical Italianate commercial building in the
district. To the south of 15-21 Vine Street is the Cresent Hose Company which

Continued...
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occupies the original Town Hall of North East. It is a simple Victorian building
with garage openings at the first story along Vine Street, segmentally arched 4/4
sash windows, a "Town Hall" marque in stone at the center bay, an oriel attic
window, a gable roof and- a ¢upola with louvered openings.

There are three religious buildings within the district. One of these
buildings is the frame Greek Revival Baptist Church at 43 South Lake Street which
has had an addition constructed to the rear and to the south. The additions are
apparently new and do not detract from the purity of the original building. The
Presbyterian Church is located on West Main Street across from Park Street. This is
a Gothic Revival Style brick church with a large steeple. Finally, the Methodist
Church is located at 30 North Lake Street and is a Victorian Gothic Style church of
brick and stone construction with large stained glass windows dominating its
elevations, These churches all remain in excellent condition and retain a high
degree of integrity,.

Across the street from the Presbyterian Church, on West Main Street, is the
McCord Memorial Library Building constructed in 1916, It is an unusual building for
this town because its style reflects that of its period's popular Praire Style.
This influence may have been a result of its namesake, John C. McCord, having spent
most of his life in Chicago.

The buildings of St. Mary's Seminary are situated on a large landscaped B0 acre
parcel to the north of West Division Street. The district's boundary follows an
alley along the property to include only the two main buildings on the property.
The buildings are of stone construction and are of the Victorian Gothic Style with
momochromatic stone materials. The dominate, sloping hillside with an iron fence
surrounding the property presents a dramatic site from West Division Street. The
buildings survive in good condition and retain a high degree of integrity.

The Heard Memoral School is a large imposing building in a Neo-Classical
Style occupying the site at Gibson and North Lake Streets.

There are 84 contributing residential buildings in the North East Historic
District. These residences are found on South Lake Street between Mechanics and
Clay Streets; on North Lake Street between Gibson and Division Streets; on West
Division between North Lake and North Pearl Streets; on Park S3treet between West
Main and West Division Streets; on North Pearl between West Main and Gibson Streets:
on Gibson Street between North Lake and North Mill Streets; and those residences on
West Main Street bhetween Pearl Street and the creek to the west. The homes are
situated on various sized lots with various setbacks along tree-lined streets with
ample sidewalks, The majority of the residential buildings are moderate in scale,

Continued...
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are two to two-and-a-half stories, and are of brick or frame construction. The
typical residential building styles are Victorian, Italianate, Queen Anne, Colonial
Revival and Bungalow. The building styles are well defined by the moderate
detailing which has remained intact on most of the homes.

The district includes those residential buildings along the west side of South
Lake Street, the only street which does not have trees lining the sidewalks. The
simple frame Victorian homes at 57 and 59 South Lake Street are setback five feet
from the sidewalk and the remaining buildings have a uniform setback of ten feec,
The homes at 69, 75, 79 and 85 South Lake Street are of frame construction in the
Queen Anne Style. The brick homes at 65, 83 and 87 are of the Italianate Style with
bracketed éaves along their flat roof lines, The building at 61 South Lake Street
is a brick Victorian residence and the building at 63 South Lake Street is a frame
Second Empire residence. Each home has experienced some degree of remodeling, like
additions or replacement windows, however, except for 57 and 59 Socuth Lake Street,
they retain their original appearance and detailing.

The homes along North Lake Street have a uniform setback of ten feer except 52
North Lake Street which is set back about thirty feet from the sidewalk. 52 North
Lake Street is a fine frame Greek Revival residence. The residences at 55, 56 and
60 North Lake Street are frame Victorian homes with simple detailing. Each has been
covered with aluminum siding. The frame residences at 47, 49 and 51 North Lake
Street are substantial Queen Anne Style buildings which retain much of their
original trim and detailing. The home at 59 North Lake Street is of stone and frame
construction and is the Dutch Colonial Style., The home at 62 North Lake Street is a
substantial brick eclectic residence.

The five residential buildings within the district, along the south side of
West Division Street, have an uniform setback and sit on a small hillside which
increases in grade from east to west. The homes at 5, 9, 11 and 15 West Division
Street are all modest in scale and are various executions of the Bungalow Style.

The homes along Park Street are generally moderate in scale, of frame
construction and Victorian 1in style, The majority of these homes have been covered
with aluminum siding such as those at 24, 26 and 33 Park Street. The Victorian home
at 36 Park Street lost its original details when a two story enclosed porch was
constructed across the facade of the building. The frame Queen Anne residence ar 25
Park Street lost its detailing, also, when it was covered with aluminum siding. The
brick residence at 7 Park Street features details of the Tudor Revival Style. The
home at 43 Park Street is a brick Italianate residence with a bracketed cornice
along the eaves of the flat roof. The most outstanding residence along Park Street

Continued. ..
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is 45 Park Street which is a frame Italian Villa Style building in excellent
condition. This home retains all original trim including the narrow clapboard wood
siding, porch posts and decorative tracery at the entrance; a bay window with
bracketed roof; ornamental window surrounds; decorative gable trim; and a tower with
a flat roof and bracketed cornice. The homes at 28 and 11 Park Street are of frame
and brick construction, respectfully, and are contemporary colonial homes. These
two residences are non-contributing buildings.

There are five residential buildings within the district aleng North Pearl
Street. All five buildings are of frame construction and contribute to the
district. The buildings include a Dutch Colonial residence at B North Pearl; a
Queen Anne residence at 10 North Pearl; and three Italianate residences at 9, 11 and
12 North Pearl.

Gibson Street is a predominate residential street within the WNorth East
district having forty residences within the district boundaries. The majority of
the homes are moderate frame Victorian buildings like 56, 60 and 69 Gibson Street.
Some of these Victorian Style buildings have experienced some degree of remodeling,
the most common feature being aluminum or asphalt siding such as those residences at
42, 46, 89 and 92 Gibson Street. There are seven moderate Queen Anne homes, three
of which are of brick construction. The homes at 30 and 32 Gibson Street are of
frame and brick construction, respectfully, and represent the typical Queen Anne
buildings found along Gibson Street. 63 Gibson Street iz of brick and frame
construction and has the massing of a Queen Anne residence, however, its detailing
is not typical. 8 Gibson Street is the most predominate Queen Anne Style residence
in the district. It commands a large site to the west of Heard Memorial School
across the street from Gibson Park. It is a substantial two-and-one-half story
brick residence with elaborate porch, window and roof detailing. The large home has
a hipped roof with multiple gable ends and an eyelid dormer at the facade elevation.
There are five frame Italianate residences along Gibson Street at 26, 73, 76, 82 and
91. There are four frame vernacular residences at 43, 45, 83 and 90, all which have
been covered with aluminum or shingle siding. Six of the homes are of various
materials and styles, including a frame Federal home at 47 Gibson Street; Shingle
Style homes at 52 and 70 Gibson Street, one brick and one frame Bungalow Style home
at 48 and 40 Gibson Street, respectfully; and a substantial frame Colonial Revival
home at 59 Gibson Street. There are three non-contributing frame ranch homes on
Gibson Street at 16, 62 and 78.

There are four residential buildings on West Main Street also included within
the district, These homes include a moderate frame Federal Style home at 44 West
Main Street; a substantial frame Federal Style home at 50 West Main Street; a
substantial frame Colonial Revival home at 52 West Main Street; and a moderate frame
Victorian home at 54 West Main Street, 50 West Main Street is a predominate

Continued...
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residential building in North East and features an expansive porch with a
balustraded handrail, original multi-upper sash windows, a hipped roof with eyelid
vents, and an octagonal room at the west elevation.

The commercial buildings retain their original character despite changes made
to their storefronts. The majority of these changes were simple storefront
replacements and did not invelve major reconstruction of the facades, The
residential buildings retain much of their original detailing except where aluminum
or shingle siding has been used. Most of these homes have been respectfully
maintained as single family dwellings and have not been converted into apartments.
All the buildings within the North East Historic District retain a high degree of
integrity.
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3. Statement of §|gnmc.n. >

* Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
[Jnationally [ ]statewide  [X]locaily

Applicable National Register Criteia [ga [8 [Xl¢ [o

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [J]8 [J¢ [Jo [Je OfF Qe

Areas of Significance {enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture : c, 1830-1939 - 1884
Commerce

Cuiltural Affiliation
N/A

Sig'niﬂcant Person Architect/Builder
N/A ‘ Yarious

State significance of property, and jusiify criteria, criteria considerations. and areas and periods of signlﬂecnco noted abave.
The North East Historic District has local architectural an

commercial significance. North East served as a commercial service
center for borough residents and area farmers from the mid-nineteenth
century through 1939, and many of the buildings that housed businesses
remain well preserved in the historic district. North East Historic
District also contains the largest and most intact collection of
mid-nineteenth to early twentieth century high style architecture in

northeastern Erie County. .
Originally known as 'Burgettstown," "Gibsonville" or "Lower Greenfield," the

Borough of "North East" was incorporated in 1834 taking the same name of the
Township in which it was located. The town was primarily a service center for the
surrounding farms and grew slowly until the 1850's when the railroad was introduced
just several blocks to the south of town., Within the next twenty years, the town's
population quadrupled and agrarian-oriented industries multiplied.

In 1870, the Lake Shore Seminary was established in North East along Division
and North Lake Streets. The seminary was sponsored by the Methodist Church and a
four story stone and brick building was erected in that year. Three years later,
the enrollment had reached 150 students. However, the seminary was not successful
and, in 1881, the Redemptionist Fathers of Annapolis, Maryland purchased the
property from the People's Savings Institution who had acquired it in a sheriff's
sale. The seminary was dedicated as St. Mary's College in August of 1881 and was
used as a preparatory college for those intending to enter the Catholic Priesthood.

By 1880, the town of North East was well established at the intersection of
Lake and Main Streets. Businesses here were oriented to meeting the local needs of
the agrarian-based economy. The commercial buildings, which had been constructed
between 1830 and 1880, were two and three story frame buildings and were
concentrated along the east and west sides of South Lake Street between Main and
Mechanics Street, the north and south sides of East Main Street between Lake and
Vine Streets, and along the south side of West Main Street between Lake and Park
Streets. Gibson Park, donated to the town by a man named Gibson in the early
1800's, occupiled the site across from the commercial buildings on West Main Street,

X] See continuation shest
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The appearance of North East's commercial center was drastically altered on
August 13, 1884. Around 3:00 A.M. on the 13th, a fire began in the general vicinity
of the Opera House on the corner of Lake and Mechanics Streets. The fire soread to
both sides of Lake Street engulfing the east side from Mechanics Street, north to
Main Street, and the west side from opposite the Opera House, north to Main Street.
It then proceeded to destroy the entire block to the west along West Main Street
including the Presbyterian Church to the west of these commercial buildings.
Although attempts were made to stop the fire, the Borough's fire fighting equipment
was insufficient against the blaze and a crew was summoned from the Erie Fire
Department.

The fire destroyed twenty two businesses at a cost estimated at $200, 000,
There was much activity following the fire including the erection of a temporary
frame building in Gibson Park to accommodate the businesses which had been burned
out , The Borough Council took action by first prohibiting the construction of
permanent frame buildings on Main and Lake Streets for commercial use. The Council
also ordered that all the frame buildings constructed since 1878 be demolished.
Secondly, the Council limited the height of any new commercial construction to two
stories. Although not forbidden by the ordinance, it was noted that "...experience
had demonstrated that in a town of this size the third story is of very little use.”
The reason for this discretion was that the town's fire fighting equipment was
unable to get water to the third floor in the event of another fire.

Several buildings did survive the fire. The building at 2-8 East Main Street
is the only remaining three story brick building in the district and was built by
Archie Duncan c. 1850. The Grand Army of the Republic Veterans occupied the second
and third floors of the building for decades and was the birthplace of the local
American Legion Post. One of North East's first banks, The People's Savings
Institution, occupied the first floor. Other buildings which survived the fire were
those buildings to the south of the Masonic Temple and were constructed c. 1870.
The buildings at 35-39 South Lake Street have been the home of the North East Breeze
since its beginning as the North East Star in 1869. For the next sixty years the
paper operated from this one building until, in 1938, the paper purchased 37 South
Lake Street and subsequently purchased 39 South Lake Street to accommodate their
increasing publication business.

The years following the fire were busy years for the town's brick manufacturer,
Dyer Loomis, who supplied the majority of the bricks used in the reconstruction of
the commercial buildings along South Lake Street, By 1890, the block of buildings
on West Main Street, across the street from Gibson Park, was completed, These
buildings were the home to several of the town's original businesses such as
Kopcke's Mens Wear and the predecessor to the First National Bank of North East. In

Continued...
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1890, the building at the southeast corner of Lake and Main Streets was constructed
by the Haynes family. Since the town's inception, this land had housed an inn or
tavern and the Haynes family continued that tradition with their new building known
as the "Haynes House."  The building at 1l East Main Street was also completed
around this time. The building was constructed by John Higgins, and R, B. Southwick
operated a shoe store from the facility well into the 1920's.

In 1892, the Masons, having been out of a meeting hall since the fire,
purchased a piece of property along South Lake Street fpom Albert Short and
constructed North East's Masonic Temple, The following year, N. J. Bogenschutz
constructed two buildings at 18-20 and 24-28 South Lake Street, across the street
from the Masonic Temple, for his furniture business which he began in 1879,
Originally housed in a buillding on Clinton Street in North East, Mr. Bogenschutz
erected the two most elaborate commercial buildings in the town of North East,

At the turn of the century, the commercial district was complete.
the combination Town Hall and Cresent Hose Company had just been
constructed on Vine Street and the businesses operating in North East
were geared toward servicing the borough and surrounding farms, This
role continsed even as new industry sprang up after 1900 near the
southern edge of Northeast. Industrial plants were erected to process
fruit from area orchards and grapes from Tocal vineyards. As industry
expanded near the southern edge of North East, businesses in the
historic district provided the industrial workers as well as other
residents of Northeast and surrounding farms with goods and services
through 1939,

By the turn of the centurv, the religious component of North East
was also well established. The First Baptist Church was organized in
1858 with only twenty members. The following year the congregation
constructed the present frame church on South Lake Street at a cost of
$2,500. Additions were constructed in 1869, 1930, and a sanctuary was
constructed in 1956 to meet the demands o“ the growing congregation. The
original Presbyterian Church of North East was destroyed in the 1884
fire. The church was rebuilt in 1885 and dedicated the same year. The
Methodist Episcopal Church was organized ir *P1? and the present brick
church on Morth Lake Street was constructed ir 1903.

The population of the Bor
Scotch-Irish from New England an
increased to 952 with the addi
may be explained b
East in 1852,

ough in 1850 was only 386 and consisted of the
d eastern Pennsylvania, By 1860, the population had
tion of Irish and German immigrants, This increase
y the introduction of the Erie and North East Railrocad to North

Continued. ..
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Early residential development occurred along Lake and Main Streets which
continued to be important residential streets into the 1900's. The oldest residence
in the district is located at 52 North Lake Street and is a frame Greek Revival
building constructed sometime between 1820 and 1840 by the Ross Family. The
building remains withodt %hlterations and is one of the finest examples of Greek:
Revival architecture in the County. Another early residence is located at 45 Park
Street. This home wag constructed by R. Graham on the site where the United States
Post Office now stands just west of the Presbyterian Church on West Main Street. No
information could be located to determine the date that the building was relocated.

The home occupies a spaclous lot and 1s an outstanding example of Italian Villa
Style architecture in frame construction.

South Lake Street attracted some early residences, although the majority have
been replaced. Two of the oldest residents along South Lake Street are numbers 65
and 83. Both are brick Italianate buildings constructed c¢. 18635, One of the
predominant residences on South Lake Street was that of Alfred Short located at rhe
corner of South Lake Street and Mechanics Street. Mr. Short constructed his mansion
in the 1870's and lived there until 1894 when personal bankruptcy forced him to sell
the property. The home was purchased by Frank L. Bowman who comstructed an addition
to the north of the residence and converted the residence for use as a hotel. In
1946, a fire destroyed the Short Mansion and left the Bowman addition in poor
condition. The addition was restored and refurbished, but it is presently vacant.

Many homes were constructed close to the railroad and the industries to the
south of town, but new residences were also being constructed to the north of the
central business district along the park and adjoining stréets. The majority of the
homes to the north of Main Street were constructed by 1890 and featured the
Victorian, Italianate and Queen Anne Styles and were of frame construction, These
homes are typical of similar homes found in similar small towns in Erie County such
as Unicn City and Waterford, although they retain a higher degree of integrity. The
town of North East has a solid economic base in its surrounding industries and
little actrition of the population has occurred which has created a steady demars
for single family residences. The residents have respectfully maintained rhe:.r
homes and few residences have been converted to apartments.

The homes, commercial buildings and churches in the North East
Historic District constitute the largest and best preserved
concentration of high style, mid-nineteenth to early twentieth century
architecture in northeastern Erie County. The borough of North East as a
whole includes the Targest number of mid-nineteenth to early twentieth
century buildings in northeastern Erie County. Within the borough the
historic district has the biggest concentration of high-style buildings
from this period. Most other buildings in the borough are much more
plain, more vernacular edifices than are found in the historic district.
Also, other buildings in the borough tend to be more altered or
intersparsed with noncontributing, post-1939 structures than the
buildings in the historic district are.
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Verbai Boundary Description

The boundaries of the North East Historic District are shown as a solid black line on
the accompanying map entitled "North East Historic District." A scale has been
included for accuracy.

D See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The boundaries of the North East Historic District include commercial, residential,
religious and institutional buildings in and arnund the town of North East. The
boundaries include those commercial buildings facing East and West Main Street between
Vine and Park Streets. The residential buiid:ings within the district are those

E See continuation sheet
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NS Form 10-000- . ‘ OMB Aparovel No. 1024-0018
[ ]

-~

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

North East Historic District
Section number _10  Page ___ 2

buildings found on South Lake Street between Mechanics and Clay Streets; on North Lake
Street between Gibson and Division Streets; on West Division between North Lake and
North Pearl Streets; on Park Street between West Main and West Division Streets:; on
North Pearl between West Main and Gibson; on Gibson Street between North Lake and
North Mill Streets; and those residences on West Main Street between Pearl Street and
the creek to the west.

The boundaries of the district have been designated as such to include only those
buildings with the highest degree of integrity in a contiguous manner and to exclude
any intrusions and non-contributing buildings where possible. The buildings to the
east of Vine Street on East Main Street represent such intrusions and non-¢contributing
buildings., The intrusions include two new bank buildings and an used car dealership.
The non-contributing buildings are those which have suffered extensive remodeling.
The distriect also excludes those buildings along the south side of West Main Street
west of Park Street which are mainly contemporary buildings such as the United States
Post Office Building.

The buildings along the east side of South Lake Street also represent such intrusions
and altered buildings and have, therefore, been excluded frem the district. The
southernmost boundary crosses South Lake Street to include 87 South Lake Street and
excludes the modest frame residential buildings further south. These homes have
experienced extensive remodeling and all original detail and character has been
removed . The eastern boundaries at Park and Gibson Street also exclude homes which
have suffered from extensive remodeling and those homes which were constructed after
the district's period of significance.

Along North Lake Street, the boundary jogs to exclude the North East School and an
adjacent wvacant lot. The school building is a contemporary building with several
recent additions.

The northernmost boundary runs along the rear of the two main buildings on the site of
St. Mary's Seminary to the north of Division Street. This boundary was selected to
include the main buildings and exclude several associated buildings of later
construction and the vacant acreage to the north.
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